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Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 
 

Custodial Outreach and Information Session 
Ronald Reagan Washington National Airport Terminal A Lobby 

Tuesday, June 18, 2013, 10:00 am to Noon 
 
 

Session Notes/Comments/Q&As 
 
 
 
Information Panel Participants 
Richard Gordon, Manager, Equal Opportunity Programs 
Liz Bryan, Manager, Procurement & Contracts 
Kim Westerhaus, Contracting Officer, Procurement & Contracts 
Frank Develin, Manager, DCA Maintenance & Engineering 
Leslie Clark, Contracting Coordinator, DCA Maintenance & Engineering 
 
Program Agenda 
Richard Gordon, Manager, Equal Opportunity Programs, gave welcome and 
introductory comments featuring the following primary points: 
 

• This event is not a pre-proposal conference. What we want to do today is to have 
a two way conversation about this upcoming opportunity and to have you provide 
us with your comments, concerns, and interests in this future solicitation  

• This event will only be successful through your participation.  
• We want to provide you with information on this upcoming opportunity, by talking 

about the current projected requirements related to scope of work, previous 
experience, management, equipment, staffing, bonding, financial requirements, 
etc. 

• We want to talk about the unique challenges of working in the Airport related to 
24/7 and 365 day operations, background checks, security badges, parking, 
passenger traffic, etc. 

• What we want from you; we want your comments on your history/experiences 
with other contracts similar to this and how we can improve upon our solicitation; 
your ideas or comments on how we may make this a better contract opportunity 
for you; have we missed any new technologies, services, or management 
approaches that would improve the custodial services here at our airports; we 
want to know your experiences/challenges in pursuing this contract; and of 
course we want your questions.   

Leslie Clark, Contracting Coordinator, DCA Maintenance & Engineering discussed the 
current projected technical requirements of the solicitation. 

Liz Bryan, Manager, Procurement and Contracts, and Kim Westerhaus, Contracting 
Officer, Procurement and Contracts discussed the procurement process of the 
Authority. 
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Comments/Questions/Suggestions 
Staff recorded the following questions, answers, comments and suggestions that were 
exchanged between the session participants and Authority staff. The comments are 
identified as follows:  
Q: Question 
A: Answer (answers are from Authority Panel participants) 
C: Comment 
S: Suggestion 
 
Q: What is your perspective on the current incumbent and how is that reflecting on the 
current proposal? 
A: We will not comment on the incumbent’s performance.  Some of the criteria that will 
be evaluated in the new solicitation will be: past performance and history of custodial 
service, the proposer’s resources and work force to do the work properly. We need 
comments on how to improve the technical portion of the evaluation process.  We want 
to see what else is out there.   
 
Q: Transparency... what evaluation criteria will you look for in the technical 
requirements (on an ongoing basis)? 
A: Same as noted above and including resources, bonding, management and 
potentially some of your suggestions from today’s event. 
 
Q: Will there be an LDBE portion if it is not 100% LDBE? 
A: Yes, there will be an LDBE component if not 100% LDBE participation in the form of 
subcontracting or joint venture. 
 
Q: If solicitation is 100% LDBE, in the case of a joint venture (JV), will their combined 
revenue need to meet the standard of $16.5M? 
A: With a JV, if not 100% LDBE, combined revenue will not be considered.  If 100% 
LDBE both firms will need to be certified LDBE, but their combined revenue will not be 
considered in determining the LDBE size standard.   
 
Q: Past performance of both companies considered? 
A: Yes, typically in a JV the evaluation criteria are applied to members of the JV. 
 
C: Bar-coding speaks to hours; not quality of work. You should consider monitoring time 
and quality.  How is the quality of work being evaluated? 
A: That’s why we are doing outreach.  Custodial is not about the quantity but is the 
quality.  Requirements are QA/QC. 
 
Q: Is the requirement for new equipment across the board (will all offerors including the 
incumbent required to procure new equipment)? 
A: Yes 
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Q: What are the changes from the last RFP? 
A: Dedicated custodians for the pier restrooms.  While we anticipate minor changes, the 
comments and questions we receive today will help us to determine if additional 
revisions will be made. 
 
Q: The solicitation will be advertised in the 3rd quarter; do you have a specific date? 
A: We are estimating 3rd or 4th quarter but no specific date has been determined. 
 
Q: What is the time period to submit questions/comments in the interim?  Can we send 
questions/comments outside of this meeting? 
A: Contracts & Procurement will set up a comments section on the website specific to 
this outreach event. We want as many of your questions and comments as possible 
today. The comments and questions we receive today will help us to decide what 
changes will need to be made. 
 
Q: What are you looking for to keep the solicitation in the LDBE Program (i.e. pool of 
qualified contractors, 3 – 4, or 12)?   
A: Even with 100% LDBE requirements we are always looking for as much competition 
as possible.  The Authority has established procedures for determining the minimum 
number of LDBE firms when establishing LDBE requirements. 
 
Q: If taken out of LDBE Program, or reduced to 35% LDBE, what system is in place to 
monitor payment to LDBE subcontractor?  
A: During the pre-solicitation process the EOP identifies the most likely LDBE 
subcontracting opportunities.  For LDBE purposes the proposals/bids will be reviewed 
for these potential sub opportunities, and if the subcontracting plan is inconsistent with 
viable LDBE opportunities EOP will question LDBE participation plan before award of 
the contract. Once the contract is awarded there is a contract compliance monitoring 
process in place that includes monitoring by the CO, COTR and EOP. 
 
Q: Do you consider the qualifications of subcontractors? 
A: Yes, if that is part of the evaluation criteria. Should we evaluate the subcontractors? 
 
Q: After the technical evaluation, what is the weight of pricing? 
A: We cannot say how the evaluation criteria are weighted. We will need to determine 
how the evaluation factors will be weighted. Has the traditional process been supportive 
to the LDBE and/or non-LDBE community? 
 
S: Consider oral presentation for short-listed firms.  Sometimes, firms insert people in 
the proposal who do not perform on the contract.  Bring the team and the project 
manager to speak to company history. 
A: We will hold oral presentations if the solicitations are competitive and a short list is 
established. 
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C: When opportunities are open to the public as sub-contracting model, you are not 
getting true LDBE response.  It would be encouraging if the contract remained LDBE.  
Have realistic bonding.  In today’s economy, a Joint Venture (JV) is the best idea. 
A: We are currently reviewing our solicitation and contract language to better address 
issues with LDBE participation requirements, especially as related to subcontracting 
and JV. However, we would like your comments on this particularly as it relates to your 
experiences with other agencies/organizations. The Authority’s Contracting manual 
requires 100% bonding, however there are exceptions.  We must consider what risk is 
there to the Authority if contractor does not perform.   
 
Q: MWAA has been good with including range (expected value range) for the particular 
solicitation.  However this can serve as a detriment because bidders will often try to fit 
their prices within this range. 
A: Not feasible to not provide expected value.  Must give community a range based on 
the budget (most public agencies will do this).  Not to say that we are inflexible.  This 
range is established based on internal evaluation to arrive at a budgeted amount (based 
on technical requirements, scope of work, etc.). 
 
C: At least 50% LDBE gives more input from LDBE firms. 
A: Requirement depends on feedback. We have to look at how the work can be broken 
into subcontracting units.  We try to make that assessment up front.  The subcontract 
opportunities must make sense from a scope of work standpoint and are viable 
business opportunities. 
 
Q: Can custodial activities be coordinated with construction activity? 
A: Construction team is responsible for cleaning up after themselves.  On occasion, 
custodial firm is called to clean after an emergency/unusual situation; when this occurs, 
a supplemental call order is issued to the incumbent custodial contractor. 
 
Q: Can you provide technical specification of tasks in writing? 
A: We have provided this in the information package that was given to you (see task 
and frequency chart, equipment list, SOW, etc.).   
 
Q: Do you have a compliance system in place?  Other projects use Prism software, 
which handles invoicing from subcontractors. 
A: Systems are in place to monitor both contract performance and LDBE participation. 
We currently utilize a custom internal system for LDBE compliance and monitoring. 
 
Q: Are the Construction/special call orders open to all LDBEs or just the incumbent 
custodial contractor? 
A: The incumbent will receive the call order for “In-scope” work (work that is within the 
scope of the existing contract); on those few occasions where something needs to be 
done outside the existing scope; other firms would be solicited. 
 
S: Recommendation on cost proposal.  Don’t just take the lowest bidder on this 
contract. 
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S: CBEs (Certified Business Enterprises – a DC certification) are required to adhere to 
a living wage in DC; therefore DC firms will have more expenses than other firms.  Is 
living wage considered, is it the DC service area living wage?  Recommend using 
higher DC living wage and higher overhead. 
A: The Authority has a living wage that has been determined by our Board of Directors.  
Our living wage is based on the average living wage of Montgomery County and the city 
of Alexandria, and changes yearly in July.  This information will be included in the RFP. 
 
S: The site visit conducted during the solicitation process should be more detailed.  We 
did not see a breakdown of floor types (by square footage) nor the office space. Floor 
types are considered when determining what equipment to purchase.  Please break 
down floor types by square footage.  We also did not see office space.  It would be very 
helpful to see examples of all spaces or types of spaces. 
A: The site visits have been limited due to security issues and/or availability. The non-
secured terminal and garage areas are open to the public (no escort needed), the piers 
are pretty much identical (largely carpet) and terrazzo. We will look at how we might be 
able to expand the site visits to more locations. 
 
Q: When bidding, expendable supplies are a shared-risk buy.  Expendable supplies can 
vary and therefore, carry a high risk.  Can you provide historical information on 
purchase of expendable supplies? 
A: We cannot supply historical quantities as we do not gather that information from the 
contractor.  This is the contractor’s information. We can provide passenger count, 
average of three years.  Our latest Passenger Survey indicated 90 percent were 
satisfied with terminal cleanliness.   
 
Q: Can you give the facility a current grade to gauge level of cleanliness expected of the 
contractor?  Price matters! 
A: The Authority’s level of cleanliness standards during walkthrough basically include:  
no marks, scratches, gum, overflowing trash bins, etc., all day/everyday.  We will not 
speak on the incumbent’s performance. We look at quality not quantity.   
 
Q: Can we get gate passes to do our own site visits? 
A: No, small escorted tours only (this will be done during the solicitation process). 
 
Q: Inspections.  “Clean is clean.”  How do you consider time of cleaning and traffic?   
A: Cleanliness at all times.  The expectation is that you will manage to the contract 
requirements; you will not be able to use an excuse such as flight just arrive, heavy 
traffic, weather, etc. to explain why something is not clean. Inspections staff will take 
pictures and notify you for corrective actions. The passenger count for 2012 was 19.7 
million and therefore you should provide proper staffing and supplies at all time. 
 
Q: How is price reconciled with MWAA budget (how will you evaluate price 
differences)? Example: Authority budget $5M and Offeror’s proposed price $8M 
A: We have not decided the procurement process.  There are varying pricing methods. 
What we hope to find out from you is, the information that we need to provide to you so 
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that you can prepare a competent cost effective offer. Tell us what we need to be 
providing. 
 
C: We need more time and access to the airport.  Based on contract levels of 
cleanliness, more time is needed to survey escorted areas. 
A: During the solicitation process we will provide detailed maps of the airport 
(approximately 100 pages).  We have limited resources to escort companies to secured 
areas, but we will look at how we may provide you with more information if we cannot 
expand the site visits. Tell us the kinds of information you need. 
 
Q: Will there be staging space? 
A: Will provide office and storage space throughout the airport.  Contractor will need to 
supply their own office equipment/furniture. Drawings will be updated in the new 
package. 
 
Q: Will there be a downgrade from 100% LDBE (any insight)? 
A: This contract has been historically 100% LDBE.  Our process involves determining if 
there are enough LDBE firms large enough (average annual gross receipts) to handle 
the opportunity (at the current estimated price range).  The final participation decision 
has not been made. 
 
Q: When will the Airports Authority decide the LDBE requirement? 
A: Shortly; when the decision is made it will be noted in the procurement forecast on our 
website (see “Upcoming Opportunities”).   
 
S: Recommend JV who have prior experience working together (give more 
consideration to those that have worked together previously).  I felt the bonding 
requirement was reasonable on the last contract.  You should adopt “best value” 
approach and oral presentation.  Our firm can provide other agency evaluation criteria. 
 
Q: My firm currently works on a janitorial contract at Walter Reed with 200 employees 
and has a 95% government approval rating.  Walter Reed has 15 inspectors assigned 
to more than 2 million square feet. What quality control do you have in place?   
A: The Authority has two FTEs assigned to inspect work daily, monitoring and recording 
performance.  They report findings back to the Authority and contractor. Do you have 
other ideas/suggestions for improving quality control? 
 
Q: Regarding deficiencies, what corrective actions are taken and the time frame to 
address the issue? 
A. We will alert the contractor by issuing a work order with the action to be taken. 
 
S: Request supply spending from the incumbent 
A: We will take into consideration. 
 
Q: Is there a union in place? 
A: No.  Virginia is a right to work state (unionized companies are not prohibited). 



Page 7 of 10 
 

 
C: Game Plan (software) tracks QA/QC.  It is a compliance system.  It tracks supply 
usage by area/location.   
A: The intent of the contract required bar code system is two-fold; 1) document 
contractor QC inspections and 2) track task and frequency compliance 
C: Game Plan also tracks tasks and frequencies. The contractor could then generate 
reports for the contracting agency. 
 
Note: Detailed requirements for contractor reporting on task and frequency and QA/QC 
will be provided in the RFP. 
 
S: One agency utilizes “Stand and Watch Crew” (floaters). The Authority should utilize 
this method. 
A: We leave that up to the contractor; our requirement is that the contractor provides 
adequate staffing to support the entire statement of work and required levels of service 
24/7 and 365. 
 
Note: We mentioned snow earlier in the program. There is no snow removal (sidewalk 
snow removal) in this contract; however you will be required to clean/remove the 
chemical/grit generated after the snow. You should also note that during severe snow 
conditions you are required to have adequate staffing to cover the required levels of 
service (no exceptions/excuses).  
 
Q: Minimum qualifications included no less than five (5) years campus type janitorial 
experience; does this include military bases?  Remove examples, and just leave “similar 
size and scope.” 
A: Military bases are examples of campus type facilities. Also the technical evaluation 
criteria are more specific than the RFP descriptions. The point is noted. 
 
S: Software shouldn’t be specified, but up to the contractor to decide. 
A: We are not likely to require a specific type of software; we will however provide 
software minimum requirements in the RFP.  
 
Q: Are the drawings available? 
A: No, they will be available when the RFP is issued.  Currently drawings are being 
updated.  We plan to allow 60-90 days for firms to prepare offers. 
 
Q: What are the most frequented areas of the airport? 
A: North and South piers are busiest, 5 am traffic begins to build and by 10 pm begins 
to settle.  Different based on seasons. 
 
Q: Some areas are not open 24/7.  Can you talk about access to closed areas? 
A: Terminals are open 24/7 and are expected to be clean at all times.  Even in areas 
that may be closed the Contractor must be on-call for emergencies. Special work that 
needs to be done in closed areas will be coordinated with COTR. 
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Q: Will the site visit include the Hangars?  Potential firms should be able to see an 
example of each area (type of area). 
A: This will involve additional coordination; we will take it into consideration. 
 
 
Handouts 

1. Agenda 
2. Pre-solicitation Information Package (18 pages) 
3. Participants Survey (one per firm) 
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Program 
 
 
Description: Speaker: 
  

Meeting Introduction Richard Gordon 

 Manager  

 Equal Opportunity Programs 
  

Technical requirements Leslie Clark 

 Contracting Coordinator 

 Maintenance and Engineering 
  

Procurement Process Liz Bryan 
 Manager 
 Procurement and Contracts 
  
 Kim Westerhaus 
 Contracting Officer  
 Procurement and Contracts 
 
Handouts: 

• Sample Custodial Summary of Work 
• Survey 

 
 
LDBE Certification: 
To learn more information about the LDBE Program and download the application, 
please visit www.mwaa.com/4592.htm 
 
 
Request for Proposal (RFP): 
The Airports Authority will be issuing an RFP in approximately August or September 
incorporating some of the items discussed during this session.  For up-to-date 
procurement information, please visit www.mwaa.com/contracting 

Custodial Services Outreach and Information Session 
Tuesday, June 18, 2013 
10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

METROPOLITAN WASHINGTON AIRPORTS AUTHORITY 
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Survey 
 
 
1. Did you find this session informative?  

□ Yes □ No 
 
2. Would you like to see the Airports Authority conduct more Outreach sessions in the 

future? 
□ Yes □ No 

 
3. Is your firm currently LDBE certified under NAICS Code 561720 – Janitorial 

Services? 
□ Yes □ No 

 
4. If not, is your firm eligible for LDBE certification under this code (Located within the 

DC 100-mile radius, and average annual gross receipts for past three years do not 
exceed $16.5M)? 
□ Yes □ No 
 

5. When the custodial solicitation is issued, would you be interested in proposing on 
this project? 
□ Yes □ No 

 
6. Bonding will be required.  If you are interested in proposing, what is your bonding 

capability?  $___________ 
 
7. Does your firm have the capacity to supervise 175-250 employees on a single 

contract? 
□ Yes □ No 

 
8. Does your firm have a history of start-up custodial operations exceeding an annual 

value of $5-6 million dollars?   
□ Yes □ No 
 

Comment(s): 
 

 
 
 
 

METROPOLITAN WASHINGTON AIRPORTS AUTHORITY 

Custodial Services Outreach and Information Session 

June 18, 2013 


